
By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you have saved the Authority approx. £4.90 in printing costs

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

AGENDA
Committee LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

FRIDAY, 12 JULY 2019, 10.00 AM

Venue ROOM I AND J, CITY HALL - CITY HALL

Membership Councillor Mackie (Chair)
Councillors Sattar and Goddard

1  Declarations of Interest  

2  Review of a Premises Licence - Kevin's Bar, Cowbridge Road  
(Pages 3 - 168)

3  Urgent Items (if any)  

Davina Fiore
Director Governance & Legal Services
Date:  Monday, 8 July 2019
Contact:  Graham Porter, 
02920 873401, g.porter@cardiff.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



CARDIFF COUNCIL                      Agenda Item CO.  
CYNGOR CAERDYDD 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE:  12 JULY 2019 
 
Report of the Head of Regulatory Services 
 
Application for the Review of a Premises Licence 
 
Application No:   CCCP02095  
Name of Premises: Kevin’s Bar, 161 Cowbridge Road East, Canton, Cardiff CF11 9AH 
Ward: Riverside  
 
1.  Application 
 
1.1 An application for a Premises Licence - Review, has been received in respect of the 

Premises Licence held by Kevin’s Bars and Pubs Ltd for Kevin’s Bar, 161 Cowbridge 
Road East, Canton, Cardiff CF11 9AH. 

 
 
1.2 The Licence Holder is permitted by the premises licence to provide the following: 
 

(1) Licensable activities: 
 
i) The supply of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises 
ii) The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of live music 

(indoors) and recorded music (indoors) 
iii) The provision of late night refreshment (indoors) 

 
 (2) The premises may be open to the public between the following hours: 

 
Sunday to Thursday: 11:00 to 00:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 11:00 to 01:30 hours  
New Year’s Eve: Until the start of permitted hours on 1 January  
 

(3) The premises is permitted to provide licensable activities during the following 
hours: 
 
i) The supply of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises: 

Sunday to Thursday: 11:00 to 00:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 11:00 to 01:00 hours 
New Year’s Eve: Until the start of permitted hours on 1 January  
 

ii) The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of live music 
(indoors) and recorded music (indoors): 
Sunday to Thursday: 23:00 to 00:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00 hours 
New Year’s Eve: Until the start of the permitted hours on 1 January  
  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



iii) The provision of late night refreshment (indoors): 
Sunday to Thursday: 23:00 to 00:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00 hours 
New Year’s Eve: 23:00 to 05:00 hours  

 
 
2. Details of the Application for Review. 

 
2.1 An application for Review has been received from Cardiff Council’s Neighbourhood 

Services.  A copy of the application along with submitted supporting documents can 
be found in Annex A of the report.  The grounds for the review, as stated by 
Neighbourhood Services are as follows: 

 
“Shared Regulatory Services (SRS) (Cardiff) has made an application for review of 
the premises licence (CCCP02095) at Kevin’s Bar, 161 Cowbridge Road, Riverside, 
Cardiff CF11 9AH on the grounds that the operation of the premises is not conducive 
to the licensing objective, ‘Prevention of public nuisance’. 
 
The Premises Licence was issued on 28 November 2018. 
 
The application is supported by evidence that the activity of regulated entertainment 
at Kevin’s Bar, persistently disturbs local residents in the form of amplified music.  
The first reports of loud music were received soon after the venue opened in January 
2019.  Complaints have continued on a regular basis which has meant that Officers 
from Shared Regulated Services have witnessed statutory noise nuisance on numerous 
occasions from residential dwellings located in the vicinity of where Kevin’s Bar is 
located. 
 
Despite sending letters, serving an abatement notice under section 80 of The 
Environmental Protection Act 1990, sending numerous notification of offences, 
having 5 telephone conversations and having a meeting on 8 April 2019, noise 
complaints are continuing.  To date 4 breaches of the abatement notice for loud music 
have been witnessed within a 4 month period.  With this in mind it is anticipated that 
further noise nuisance complaints will be received from residents.  
 
All action to date has not been effective, I am of the opinion that there is no control or 
promotion of the licensing objective, ‘Prevention of public nuisance’.    
 
SRS therefore wish to apply for a review of the premises licence in order to prevent 
further public nuisance.  As SRS has already issued warnings requiring improvement 
(both orally and in writing) that have failed to address concerns about loud music 
SRS would like the licensing authority to revoke the licence.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



3. Relevant Representations 
 
The application for review has been advertised on the premises as required by the 
legislation.   
 
A representation has been received from Cardiff Council’s Licensing Department.  A 
copy of this representation can be found in Annex B.   
 
A representation has been received from Cardiff Council’s Planning Department.  A 
copy of this representation can be found in Annex C.   
 
A representation has also been received from one ‘other person’ as defined by the 
Licensing Act 2003.  A copy of this representation can be found in Annex D.   
 

4. Legal Considerations. 
 
4.1 Any decision must be taken following consideration of the representations received 

with a view to promoting the licensing objectives which are: 
 

Prevention of crime and disorder 
Public Safety 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
Protection of Children from Harm 

 
4.2 In each case the Sub-Committee may make the following determination 
 

a) To take no action. 
b) To modify the conditions of the licence, by altering, omitting or adding to 

them, where relevant. 
c) To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence. 
d) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor. 
e) Suspend the Premises Licence for a period not exceeding three months. 
f) Revoke the Premises Licence. 

 
4.3 All decisions taken by the Sub-Committee must (a) be within the legal powers of the 

Council and its Committees; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by 
law; (c) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the 
Council eg. standing orders and financial regulations; (d) be fully and properly 
informed; (e) be properly motivated; (f) be taken having regard to the Council’s 
fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (g) be reasonable and proper in all the 
circumstances. 

 
5. Recommendation. 
 
 It is recommended that the application for Review be considered and determined on 

its merits. 
 
 
Dave Holland        26 June 2019 
Regulatory & Supporting Services  

Page 5



Annex A 
Copy of Review application along with supporting 

documents 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



  

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the  

Licensing Act 2003  

  

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST  

  

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.   

  

I       Shared Regulatory Service (Cardiff) 

 

  (Insert name of applicant)  

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club 

premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in 

Part 1 below (delete as applicable)  Part 1 – Premises or club premises details    

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  

      Kevin’s Bar 

     161 Cowbridge Road 

      Riverside 

      Cardiff 

      CF11 9AH 

Post town          

Cardiff 

Post code (if known)   

      CF11 9AH 

  

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)    

Natasha Banner 

     

  

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  

02095        

  

  

Part 2 - Applicant details   

  

I am Shared Regulatory Service (Cardiff)   

  Please tick   yes  

     

Page 7



1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible   

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)   or (B) below)  

  

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)   

  

3) a member of the club to which this application relates       

(please complete (A) below)  

  

  

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)  

  

Please tick   yes  

  

Mr    Mrs    Miss    Ms    Other title         

  (for example, Rev)  

  

Surname    First names  

      
          

  

Current postal  

address if  

different from 

premises 

address  

  

Post town  

  

Daytime contact telephone number  

  

E-mail address 

(optional)   

  

  

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT  

  

Name and address        

       

       Post Code         

       

       

Page 8



Telephone number (if any)  

       

E-mail address (optional)         

  

  

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT  

  

Name and address  

Mrs Gillian Jones (case officer) 

 Neighbourhood Services Team 2 

 Shared Regulatory Service (Cardiff) 

 City Hall 

 King Edward V11 Avenue 

 Cardiff 

 CF10 3ND 

Telephone number (if any) 03001236696 

       

E-mail address (optional)   

 

pollution-cardiff-srswales@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk 

 

GPJones@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk 

 

   

  

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)  

  

  Please tick one or more boxes    

1) the prevention of crime and disorder   

2) public safety   

3) the prevention of public nuisance   

 

4) the protection of children from harm   

  

 

Page 9

mailto:pollution-cardiff-srswales@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk
mailto:GPJones@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk


Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)  

 

Shared Regulatory Service (SRS) (Cardiff) has made an application for review of the premises 

licence (CCCP02095) at Kevin’s Bar, 161 Cowbridge Road, Riverside, Cardiff, CF11 9AH on the 

grounds that the operation of the premises is not conducive to the licensing objective, ‘Prevention 

of public nuisance’. 

 

The Premises Licence was issued on 28th November 2018. 

 

The application is supported by evidence that the activity of regulated entertainment at Kevin’s 

Bar, persistently disturbs local residents in the form of amplified music. The first reports of loud 

music were received soon after the venue opened in January 2019. Complaints have continued on 

a regular basis which has meant that Officers from Shared Regulatory Services have witnessed 

statutory noise nuisance on numerous occasions from residential dwellings located in the vicinity 

of where Kevin’s Bar is located. 

 

Despite sending letters, serving an abatement notice under section 80 of The Environmental 

Protection Act 1990, sending numerous notification of offences, having 5 telephone conversations 

and having a meeting on 8th April 2019, noise complaints are continuing. To date 4 breaches of 

the abatement notice for loud music have been witnessed within a 4 month period. With this in 

mind it is anticipated that further noise nuisance complaints will be received from residents. 

 

All action to date has not been effective, I am of the opinion that there is no control or promotion 

of the licensing objective, ‘Prevention of public nuisance’. 

 

SRS therefore wish to apply for a review of the premises licence in order to prevent further public 

nuisance. As SRS has already issued warnings requiring improvement (both orally and in writing) 

that have failed to address concerns about loud music SRS would like the licensing authority to  

revoke the licence. 

 

 

      

 

  

Page 10



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 

guidance note 3)  

  

Numerous complaints of loud music have been received by SRS from local residents since Kevins 

Bar, 161 Cowbridge Road East, Riverside, CF11 9AH opened in December 2018. 

 

Complaints are continuing to be received regularly. The first complaint was received on 16th 

January 2019. 

 

Noise officers have repeatedly brought to the attention of the DPS’ and the Directors the 

complaints and breaches of the abatement notice pertaining to loud music. SRS Officers have 

therefore engaged with persons who have responsibility in complying with the licensing objective, 

‘Prevention of public nuisance’. 

 

A letter was sent dated 17th January 2019 to the Designated Premises Supervisor Natasha Banner 

advising her of the complaint, reminding her of her Licensing obligations and detailing the actions 

available to the service, should complaints continue, complaints continued to be made. Officers 

have witnessed loud music and bass which was so loud officers could recognise the songs, 

distinguish lyrics and know the artist and it also vibrated the complainant’s floor. Officers have 

witnessed music ongoing loudly past 01:00 during the early hours of a Sunday which is past the 

time that regulated entertainment is allowed on their premises licence.  

 

Further letters dated 12th March 2019 were sent to the two directors, Mr Bernard Carlton, Mr 

Kastriot Rama, and one to the Limited Company, Kevin’s Bars and Pubs Ltd.  

 

Unfortunately, complaints continued despite the above letters being sent, and on 16th March 2019 

two officers witnessed loud amplified music emanating from Kevins Bar, 161 Cowbridge Road 

East, Riverside, CF11 9AH, which resulted in Abatement Notices being served on 20th March 

2019. 

 

More complaints were received, two officers witnessed two breaches of the Abatement Notices 

one on 22nd March 2019, and one 30th March 2019. On 1st April 2019 notification of offences 

were sent to the designated premises supervisor (DPS) Natasha Banner, Bernard Carlton, Kastriot 

Rama, and Kevins Pubs and Bars. 

 

SRS were advised on 4th April 2019 by Mr Cameron Patterson, Licensing Consultant that Mr 

Bernard Carlton was no longer a director at Kevins Bars and Pubs Ltd. A check through 

Companies House was carried out, which still had Mr Bernard Carlton as a director.  

 

On Monday 8th April, a site meeting was held with Rebecca Williams of Neighbourhood Services 

Team 2 (Noise team), Rhys Morgan of Cardiff Council Licensing, Rob Gunstone of South Wales 

Police Licensing, Paul Trew, Acoustic Consultant (acting for Kevin’s Bar), Dane Marks (previous 

DPS), Natasha Banner (DPS) and Kastriot Rama (Director).  

 

There have been a number of calls (over 10) into SRS when officers have not been able to get to 

the complainants to witness. On all of the calls when officers have managed to visit a complainant 

a statutory noise nuisance has been witnessed. 

 

Two breaches of the Abatement Notices which were witnessed by two officers on 26th April 2019 

and on 27th April 2019. On 2nd May 2019 notification of offences were sent out to Natasha 

Banner, Bernard Carlton, Kastriot Rama, and Kevins Pubs and Bars Ltd. 

 

Page 11



Another check through Companies House was carried out, which showed that Mr Bernard Carlton 

was no longer a director, however he is still a person with significant control. 

 

Summary 

The first reports of loud music were received soon after the venue opened in January 2019. 

Numerous complaints have been received by SRS in respect of loud music emanating from 

Kevin’s Bar, from several different properties. 

One abatement notice for loud music has been served and to date 4 breaches have been witnessed 

in 4 months. 

Management of the noise coming from the venue is not effective. 

The current premises licence allows regulated entertainment to cease at midnight (Sunday to 

Thursday) and 01:00 (Friday and Saturday). Officers have witnessed loud music being played past 

01:00 during the early hours of a Sunday. 

Page 12



                                                                                                                                  Please tick   yes  

Have you made an application for review relating to the   premises before  

  

  

If yes please state the date of that application  Day  Month  Year  

                       

  

  

  

  

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 
and when you made them  

      No 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Page 13



  

  

  

  

  

    

                                                                                                                                  Please tick   yes  

  

• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities  

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 

as appropriate                                                                                               

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my  

application will be rejected                                                                                

              

  

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE  

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.    

  

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4)  

  

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 

guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.  

 Signature       

…………………………………………………………………………………………………  

  

Date               23rd May 2019     

…………………………………………………………………………………………………  

  

Capacity            Neighbourhood Services Officer 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………  

  

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 

associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)        

 

Mrs Gillian Jones 

Post town Post Code  

             

Telephone number (if any)         

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 

(optional)       pollution-cardiff-srswales@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk 

  

Notes for Guidance   

  

Page 14



1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.  

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.  

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which 

are included in the grounds for review if available.  

4. The application form must be signed.  

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so.  

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.  

  

Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Annex B 
Representation submitted by Cardiff Council’s 

Licensing Department 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Annex C 
Representation submitted by Cardiff Council’s 

Planning Department  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Annex D 
Representation submitted by ‘other person’ 

Page 165



Page 166



CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Neuadd y Sir, Glanfa'r Iwerydd
CAERDYDD CF10 4UW
Tel: 029 20872088

County Hall, Atlantic Wharf
CARDIFF CF10 4UW
Tel: 029 20872087

Cyngor Caerdydd

Cardiff Council

Title

Scale: 1:708
Date: 27/6/2019 at 14:26 PM
Coordinates:
© Crown copyright and database rights
(2014).
This copy is produced specifically to supply
County Council information NO further copies
may be made.

Ordnance Survey 100023376 (2014).

Copyright Cardiff County Council, Licence Number 100023376Copyright Cardiff County Council, Licence Number 100023376

10 m
50 f t

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Review of a Premises Licence - Kevin's Bar, Cowbridge Road
	Report - Kevin's Bar (Review) - Copy
	Application No:   CCCP02095
	Name of Premises: Kevin’s Bar, 161 Cowbridge Road East, Canton, Cardiff CF11 9AH

	Annex A B C & D
	Review Supporting Doc's - Redacted2
	Licensing Representation
	Planning Representation
	Stuart Representation
	Kevin's Bar Location Plan
	Title





